
PUBLIC SAFETY 
COMMITTEE 

December 12, 2023 
3:30 p.m. 

AGENDA www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

Council Committees are 
primarily concerned with 
legislative/policy matters. 

They formulate and convey 
recommendations to the full 

council for action  
(BLMC 2.04.090). 

The public is invited to attend Public Safety Committee Meetings in person, via conference call 
or over the internet. The information for attending is provided below.   

Public Safety Committee Meetings attendance options: 
In-Person: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main ST E, Ste 200, Bonney Lake 
By phone: 408-419-1715 (Meeting ID: 108 752 450 
By internet: Chrome- https://bluejeans.com/108752450?src=calendarLink 

A. CALL TO ORDER – Councilmember Justin Evans, Chair

B. ROLL CALL: Councilmember Justin Evans, Councilmember Angela Baldwin, and
Councilmember Gwendolyn Fullerton.

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: November 14, 2023

D. DEPARTMENT REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS:

1. East Pierce Fire & Rescue Monthly Report

2. Bonney Lake Police Department Monthly Report

3. Prosecutor’s Office Monthly Report

E. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS:

1. AB23-152 – Ordinance D23-152 – Ordinance Amending Bonney Lake Municipal
Code Section 6.04

F. OPEN COMMITTEE DISCUSSION:

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS:
Public comments can be made in-person, by phone or virtually during this portion of the meeting.
Comments are limited to 5 minutes. Those planning to comment via phone or virtually will need to
sign up prior to the meeting in order to comment. When signing up, please provide your name, your
screen name, and phone number (for callers) either by email to lambersonb@cobl.us or by phone at
253-447-4356. Virtual and call in registrations need to be received by 2:30 p.m. the day of the
meeting. During the meeting, your name will be called when it is your turn. Your microphone will be
activated, and you will be able to comment. Those physically appearing at the Public Safety
Committee meeting to speak during citizen comments do not need to sign up but will be asked to state 
their name and address for the meeting record.

p.3

p.5

p.11

p.15

p.19

1

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/
https://bluejeans.com/108752450?src=calendarLink


H. ADJOURNMENT 
 

2



PUBLIC SAFETY 
 COMMITTEE 

 
November 14, 2023 

3:30 P.M. 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 

 
 

www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us        

 
Location: Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 

A. CALL TO ORDER – Councilmember Justin Evans, Chair, called the meeting to order 
at 3:30 p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL: Councilmember Justin Evans, Councilmember Angela Baldwin, and 
Councilmember Gwendolyn Fullerton.  

Staff members in attendance at the physical location were City Administrator John 
Vodopich, Chief of Police Mark Berry, Executive Assistant/Management Analysist 
Leslie Harris, Prosecuting Attorney, Dena Burke, Karla Lewis Community Court Case 
Manager, and Administrative Specialist III Brandy Lamberson. 
 
Staff members in attendance virtually was Judicial Branch Administrator, Kathy 
Seymour. 
 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 
Minutes from the October 10, 2023 Public Safety Committee Meeting were 
approved.  
 

D. DEPARTMENT REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS:  

1. East Pierce Fire & Rescue Monthly Report  

East Pierce Fire & Rescue Monthly Report. Presented the uploaded monthly 
report, Fire Station updates and employment updates. 

2. Bonney Lake Police Department Monthly Report – Chief of Police Mark Berry 

Chief of Police Berry presented Bonney Lake Police Department Monthly Report. 
Presented the uploaded monthly report and staffing updates. 

3. Prosecutor’s Office Monthly Report – Emergency Manager Raejean Kreel 

Emergency Manager Kreel presented Prosecutor’s Office Monthly Report. 
Presented the uploaded monthly report. 

 
E. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS:  

Audio starts at: 
03:30:00 

Audio starts at: 
03:30:00 

Audio starts at: 
03:30:00 

Audio starts at: 
03:39:00 

3



1. AB23-152 – Ordinance D23-152 – Amending Bonney Lake Municipal Code 
Section 6.04.190 – Prosecuting Attorney Dena Burke. 

Prosecuting Attorney Burke presented Amending Bonney Lake Municipal Code 
Section 6.04.190. Presented BLMC change to rewrite “animal at large” code. 

The Committee agreed update wording and bring to next Public Safety 
Meeting. 

2. AB23-148 – Resolution 3189 – Washington Traffic Safety Commission 
Interagency Agreement – Chief of Police Mark Berry. 

Chief of Police Berry presented Washington Traffic Safety Commission 
Interagency Agreement. Presented program contract for budget reimbursement. 

The Committee agreed to forward to the Council Consent Agenda. 

3. AB23-149 – Resolution 3190 – Enumclaw Jail Contract – Chief of Police Mark 
Berry. 

Chief of Police Berry presented Enumclaw Jail Contract. Presented contract for 
bed pricing and bed increase. 

The Committee agreed to forward to the Council Consent Agenda. 
 

F. OPEN COMMITTEE DISCUSSION:   

1. Community Court Update – Karla Lewis 

Karla Lewis presented information of Community Court, updates, and resource 
fair information. 

 
G. PUBLIC COMMENTS: None. For efficient use of city resources, comments will be a 

short summary and not verbatim. Video recordings will be uploaded to the city’s 
YouTube channel and an audio recording to the state digital archives if needing a 
complete review of comments.  

H. ADJOURNMENT 

Councilmember Justin Evans adjourned the meeting at 04:20pm.  
 
 
 

  
 
 

Brandy Lamberson, Public Safety Committee Clerk 

 

  

 

Audio starts at: 
04:20:00 

Audio starts at: 
03:42:00 

Audio starts at: 
04:02:00 

Audio starts at: 
04:04:00 

Audio starts at: 
04:10:00 

           Brandy Lamberson

4



Incident Count by Station Area—YTD thru November 2023 
58 fewer calls YTD than YTD 2022 a decrease of 0.50%

19
59

18
72

24
72

10
52 11

26

26
15

21
84

17
92

25
79

89
9

12
28

24
95

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Bonney Lake (111) Prairie Ridge (112) Sumner (113) Lake Tapps
(114/115)

Foothills/South
Prairie (116/119)

Edgewood/Milton
(118/124)

2023 YTD 2022 YTD TOTAL

↓10.3%

↑4.46%

↑17.02%

↑4.81%↓4.15%

↓8.31%

5



Bonney Lake—YTD thru 11/30/2023

E111 show an increase 
of 3.7% over last year .
M111 shows increase 
of 0.6% over last year

Station 111 First-Due area
Response 2022 2023

Priority

Count 974 938
Travel Time-90th% 8:01 8:01
50 percentile response 6:04 6:06
90 percentile response 9:28 9:43

All Responses

Count 1971 1866
Travel Time-90th% 9:53 10:08
50 percentile response 6:50 6:49
90 percentile response 11:31 11:42

City of Bonney Lake
Response 2022 2023

Priority

Count 1073 1078
Travel Time-90th% 7:55 7:44
50 percentile response 6:01 5:56
90 percentile response 9:23 9:32

All Responses

Count 2276 2138
Travel Time-90th% 9:42 9:56
50 percentile response 6:45 6:41
90 percentile response 11:20 11:33

Station 111 (Bonney Lake) Reliability
Station Responses Percent
Bonney Lake (111) 763 76%
Prairie Ridge (112) 101 10%
Foothills (116) 73 7%
Lake Tapps (114) 40 4%
Sumner (113) 22 2%

3
1
7
6 2

5
2
2

3
0
6
3 2

5
0
7

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

E111 M111

Unit Count YTD

2023 2022

6



5-Year 
Trend

• Projected end of year total using  MS Forecast 
based on month-to-month numbers starting 
1/1/2019 thru 11/30/2023.  Projected total is 
12506 ±128.  Decrease of 1.16% from 2022.  

11150

11784

11163

12514
12653

12506

10000

10500

11000

11500

12000

12500

13000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

5-year Trend

7



Total Counts by Unit—YTD Thru November 2023

3
1
7
6

2
5
2
2

2
6
2
4

3
3
5
7

2
5
1
2

1
2
8
0

3
1

2
4
6
8

2
0
9
6

2
8
5
4

2
2
3
7

3
0
6
3 2

5
0
7

2
4
4
8

3
1
5
4

2
4
6
3

1
4
4
0

9
8

2
3
6
1

2
0
0
8

2
5
0
5 2

0
3
6

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

E111 M111 E/M112 L113 M113 E114 M114 E116 M116 E118 M118

Unit Count YTD

2023 2022

↓11.1%

↑3.7%

↑4.4% ↑9.9%

↑6.4%

2.0%

↑13.9%
↑7.2%

↑4.5%

↓68.4%

0.6%

8



Incidents by Type—YTD thru November 2023

Incident Type Group 2023 Total
100 - Fire 332 2.9%
200 – Overpressure, Rupture, Explosion—No fire 3 0.03%
300 - EMS 8340 72.80%

400 - HAZMAT 178 1.50%

500 - Service Call 917 8.0%
600 – Good intent—Includes wrong location, controlled burn, patient 
already transported… 1076 9.4%

700 - False Alarm 596 5.2%

800 - Natural Disaster 1 0.01%

900 - Special Incident 7 0.07%

Annual Total 11450

9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

10



 

 1 

      

 
 
 

2023 

Public Safety Report 

Bonney Lake Police Department 

November 2023 

CITY OF BONNEY LAKE | 18421 Veterans Memorial Drive East, Bonney Lake, WA 98391 

11



 

 2 

PATROL ACTIVITY  

November 6th—November 13th 

Attempted MVTR @ 9XXX 219th Ave E – Caller reported a juvenile male was 
possibly attempting to steal a vehicle from the 410 Auto Sales lot. Juvenile resided 
nearby and his parents arrived. Vehicle was unlocked with the keys in it. Business 
owner was contacted and advised he did not want to be a victim, just an 
information report. 

Burglary @ 7XXX 214th Ave E—Owners reported they believed squatters are in the 
house. Officers confirmed it appears there may be squatters living inside as a dog 
could be heard barking from within and lights were on inside. Officers attempted to 
communicate with suspected occupants, but no one responded. Officers advised 
the owners that code enforcement has already been made aware and the house is 
not safe for officers to enter. Owners were advised to follow up with code 
enforcement on Monday and begin working through the civil eviction process with 
the county.  

Shoplift/Recovered Runaway @ Walmart—Officers responded to a report of a 
shoplift that just occurred. Upon arrival, the two suspects were contacted and 
detained. It was determined that one of the suspects was an active runaway. She 
was cited and her guardian responded to pick her up. The other suspect was also 
cited and released at the scene due to her having two small children with her.  

October 30th—November 6th 

Shoplift @ Home Depot – Loss Prevention called to report a male walked out with 
a bucket full of tools but dropped it when confronted. Area check completed. 
Unable to locate.  

Vehicle Fire @ 19XXX State Route 410 E—RP reported his vehicle was on fire. 
Officers arrived to a partially engulfed engine compartment. Officers were able to 
extinguish the fire prior to EPFR arrival. EPFR evaluated the engine and found no 
hazards.  

Threats @ BLHS—Two students threatened to bring guns to the school to handle a 
dispute between them. School was placed on modified lockdown. Both students 
were eventually located at their residences.  

BONNEY LAKE POLICE | Public Safety Report— NOVEMBER 2023 

Bonney Lake Police Department            November 2023 
Public Safety Report 

12



 

 3 

November 13th  - November 20th  

Theft in Progress @ Target—Loss Prevention reported two suspects inside the store with two 
carts full of merchandise and were walking towards a fire exit to a waiting vehicle. The vehicle 
had moved to the main parking lot prior to PD arrival and must have notified the subjects 
inside as they ditched the two carts near a fire exit and left. The two carts were found to have 
over $4,000 of merchandise in them. 

Welfare Check / Order Violation @ Red Robin—Caller reported a male slumped over in a 
vehicle in the Red Robin parking lot. Officers contacted the occupants, finding the male was 
extremely intoxicated and had to be transported to Good Samaritan Hospital. Records 
confirmed there was a No Contact Order between the occupants.  

Disorderly/Fight @ BLHS – 5 students involved in a physical altercation. Mainly between two 
students, 4 other individuals jumped in to pull people off along with staff. Parents were 
contacted by school staff and report taken and forwarded to the JV prosecutor.  

November 20th—November 27th 

Agency Assist @ Winco – Sumner PD had a carjacking with shots fired at Winco 
with the suspects shooting at the victim’s boyfriend in another vehicle following. 
Shortly after, Sumner received a call of an individual that had been shot in the face. 
A witness called stating they were following the stolen vehicle and possibly parked 
in a garage in the 5100 block of West Tapps Hwy E. The suspected residence was 
contacted by PSCO/ Sumner PD and no stolen vehicle was found. Investigation 
ongoing.  

Commercial Burglary @ Chevron – Unknown subject broke the lock on the front 
door and stole large amounts of lottery tickets and cigarettes. Video footage 
showed W/M average height, baseball hat, black hoody, gray jacket, and tan pants. 
Fled toward Les Schwab Tires. 

Commercial Burglary @ Safeway Fuel—Commercial alarm at the fuel 
station.  Unknown suspect defeated the lock on the door and made off with all the 
scratch tickets and a few packs of cigarettes.  Video obtained and determined the 
suspect was not wearing gloves.  A piece of plastic the suspect touched was 
determined to have fingerprint evidence and was taken for further 
processing.  Video review revealed very likely the same suspect that burglarized the 
Chevron in the above mentioned call. 

PATROL ACTIVITY Cont. 

Bonney Lake Police Department            November 2023 
Public Safety Report 

BONNEY LAKE POLICE | Public Safety Report— NOVEMBER 2023 
13



Bonney Lake Police Department
2023 NIBRS & Crime Report

NIBRS Offenses JA
N 

FEB
MAR

APR
MAY

JU
N

JU
L

AUG
SEPT

OCT
NOV

DEC
YTD 2023 YTD 2022

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 6 9
1 0 1 0 2 1 0 1 1 2 9 13
2 1 4 0 1 3 1 1 2 2 17 31
6 6 12 5 14 14 10 6 5 7 85 102
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7 4 5 4 3 4 5 5 4 3 44 73
0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 3 2
20 25 30 26 31 21 31 23 15 28 250 474
6 4 9 11 6 4 11 6 3 2 62 67
2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 7 2
0 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 8
7 5 7 5 7 7 1 7 4 7 57 78
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 5 4 4 4 0 1 2 3 2 28 30
15 15 18 16 15 9 19 5 7 6 125 174
0 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 7 13
0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2 2 0 3 1 2 2 2 2 5 21 42
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1 2 2 2 2 0 1 0 0 1 11 13
72 73 96 78 88 65 85 60 53 67 0 0 737 1136

Other YTD 2023 YTD 2022
15 8 12 14 11 15 9 10 7 8 109 110
0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 3
0 0 0 0 0 2 1 1 0 1 5 4
15 8 12 15 11 17 11 11 7 9 0 0 116 117

YTD 2023 YTD 2022
Adult 16 17 27 19 31 19 25 26 22 18 220 300

23 21 10 14 17 12 3 9 8 9 126 163
39 38 37 33 48 31 28 35 30 27 0 0 346 463

Juvenile 1 1 2 2 5 0 1 5 1 1 19 7
0 0 0 0 1 2 0 1 0 2 6 4
1 1 2 2 6 2 1 6 1 3 0 0 25 11

TOTAL ARRESTS 40 39 39 35 54 33 29 41 31 30 0 0 371 474

Traffic YTD 2023 YTD 2022
27 24 19 20 18 29 29 26 22 40 254 258
84 38 30 91 121 55 62 31 50 35 597 427
128 56 43 101 154 75 82 41 67 46 793 589
1 4 1 0 1 1 6 9 0 0 23 18
1 5 1 0 2 2 6 11 0 0 28 25
6 2 7 5 8 3 1 8 2 3 45 36
53 17 19 12 16 10 16 7 10 11 171 148
67 19 24 13 23 11 21 10 13 14 215 197
118 89 68 112 174 114 119 87 48 74 1003 866
0 4 1 1 67 10 16 3 0 0 102 54

485 258 213 355 584 310 358 233 212 223 0 0 3231 2618

YTD 2023 YTD 2022
1570 1355 1569 1534 1775 1565 1709 1410 1425 1494 15406 18503
156 147 148 128 161 179 210 158 130 170 1587 1804Calls w/ Reports

Traffic Misdemeanors - Violations Chrgd.
Sector Tickets Issued
Paper Tickets Issued
TOTAL TRAFFIC

Calls for Service & Reports
Calls for Service

Traffic Misdemeanors - Citations Filed

Group B
Total Adult Arrests

Group A
Group B

Total Juvenile Arrests

Motor Vehicle Collisions 
Traffic Infractions Filed
Traffic Violations Charged
Non-Traffic Infractions Filed
Non-Traffic Violations Charged
DUI Citations

Group A

Gambling Offenses
Prostitution Offenses
Violation No Contact Order
Bribery
Weapon Law Violations
TOTAL NIBRS OFFENSES

Domestic Violence Offenses
Suicide
Attempted Suicide
TOTAL OTHER

Arrests (Misdemeanor & Felony)

Pornography/Obscene Material

Burglary
Arson
Larceny
Motor Vehicle Theft
Extortion/Blackmail
Counterfeiting/Forgery
Fraud
Embezzelment
Stolen Property Offenses
Destruction of Property/Vandalism
Drugs/Narcotics Offenses

Human Trafficking

Murder/Non-Negligent Manslaughter
Forcible Sex Offenses
Robbery
Aggravated Assault
Simple Assault
Intimidation
Non-Force Sex Offenses
Kidnapping

14



.     
OFFICE OF THE PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 

JUSTICE CENTER 
9002 MAIN STREET EAST – SUITE 200 

BONNEY LAKE, WA 98391 
PHONE: (253) 447-3288 FAX: (253) 862-8538 

 

 

Prosecutor’s Office 

November 2023 Monthly Report 
 

November 2023 Hearings  

Arraignments 30 

Pre-Trial  91 

Readiness 5 

Sentencing  2 

SOC Compliance (Included in Sentence Compliance) 

Sentence Compliance (Reviews) 111 

Community Court Compliance 10 

Community Court Pre-Opt 5 

SCORE In Custody Hearings 6 

Bench Warrant Quash 32 

Expired Warrants 16 

Infraction Contested  37 

Infraction Mitigation  9 

Parking 0 

Trials 0 

Motion Hearings 1 

Restitution Hearings 0 

Extreme Risk Protection Order Hearings 1 

Blake Vacate/Dismiss  2 

Other  8 

Total Hearings 366 

 

  

15



1
2

9

2
0

5

8
2

7
5

4
3 5
1 8

1 8
8 9
4

9
2

DISCOVERY PACKETS PROVIDED 
TO DEFENSE ATTORNEYS

1
7

.7
1

1
4

.1

3
0

.8

2
6

.9
7

1
4

3
0

.5
6

2
0

.7
1

1
9

.5
9 2
9

.0
9

BWC HOURS

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3
6

6 4
8

9

3
5

5

3
4

2

5
9

2

4
1

1 5
4

7

3
0

5

4
9

1

4
3

9

3
6

6

HEARINGS
 

16



Updates 

 

Staff viewed 29.09 hours of Body Worn Camera (BWC) video and provided 92 discovery 

packets to Defense. 

 

We charged our first two cases under the new Drug Possession law – RCW 69.50.4013, 

adopted by BLMC 9.01.010. 

 

Administrative Specialist Paul has been working with three high needs victims who have 

been actively communicating with her how terrified they are of the defendant. She is working with 

them daily to connect them to resources and help them remain safe.  

 

The Prosecutor’s Office is collaborating with the new Community Court Case Manager. 

Soon, Community Court Participants will be able to utilize Uber or Lyft via grant funds to gain 

access to transportation to and from drug and alcohol evaluation and treatment appointments. 

Additionally, we are working on revisions to the Community Court Policies and Procedures as we 

learn more about how to help Participants in this new approach to justice.  

 

The Bonney Lake-Eatonville ILA for Court, Prosecution, and Public Defender services 

terminates on December 31, 2023. Eatonville plans to receive future services from Pierce County. 

Staff are working diligently on winding down and transitioning cases before the end of the year. 

On December 29, Prosecutor Candia will deliver remaining paper files to Eatonville. 

Administrative Specialist Paul is ensuring proper paperwork is loaded into electronic files before 

they are sent to Eatonville. Legal Specialist Visnaw is preparing and sending download links for 

all electronic files to Eatonville.   

 

 

 

17



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

18



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

 

Department/Staff Contact: 
Prosecutor's Office / Dena Burke 

- Deputy City Attorney-
Prosecutor 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
12 December 2023 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB23-152 

Agenda Item Type: 
Ordinance 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
D23-152 

Sponsor: 
      

 

Agenda Subject:  Ordinance Amending BLMC 6.04 
 

Full Title/Motion:   An Ordinance  Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Amending Bonney Lake Municipal Code Sections 6.04.190 And 6.04.230. 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  Approve 
 

Background Summary:  When local cities contracted with Metro Animal Services, they sought to create 
more uniform respective city codes for licensing and keeping of potentially dangerous and dangerous dogs 
in 2020. In doing so, the Bonney Lake Municipal Code was amended such that the portion of the code that 
pertained to animals at large was restricted to only animals at large in certain public areas.  
 
As the Bonney Lake Municipal Code is currently written, only animals at large in public places are in 
violation. This is different from other cities that also contract with Metro Animal Services. The proposed 
amendment includes language that is the same or similar to the other cities and creates a more uniform 
code in the interest of community health, safety, and welfare. 
 
At the November 14, 2023, Public Safety Committee Meeting, Councilmembers requested additional 
language be added to evince the legistlative intent that the Prosecutor is encouraged to move for the Court 
to lower the fine owed in the interest of justice, such as, when it is an isolated incident for the 
animal/animal owner, the animal owner takes corrective action, an inquiry into the finances of the owner 
shows a hardship or inability to pay, or otherwise in the interests of justice. The recommended code 
change has been updated with this intent.   
Attachments:   Ordinance No.D23-152 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 

      
Current Balance 

      
Required Expenditure 

      
Budget Balance 

      
Fund Source 

 General 
 Utilities 
 Other 

Budget Explanation: No direct budget impact 
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Public Safety 

Date: 12 December 2023 
Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Justin Evans    
Councilmember Gwendolyn Fullerton    
Councilmember Dan Roach    

 Forward to: Council Meeting   Consent Agenda:  Yes     No 

Commission/Board Review:       
Hearing Examiner Review:       
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):        Public Hearing Date(s):       
Meeting Date(s):  12 December 2023 Tabled to Date:       

19



 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
JPV 

Mayor: 
MM 

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney:  
(if applicable) 

      
 

 
 
 

 

20



ORDINANCE NO. D23-152 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BONNEY LAKE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
BONNEY LAKE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 6.04.190 AND 
6.04.230 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to revise its code to more closely reflect that 
of other cities served by Metro Animal Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the current language of the code limits citing animals at large to only 

those animals that become at large in generally public places; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that this ordinance is in the interest 

of community health, safety and welfare, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY LAKE, 
WASHINGTON HEREBY DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:   

 
Section 1. Section 6.04.190 of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code is hereby amended to 

read as follows: 

6.04.190 General Violations.  

It shall be a violation of this chapter for any person or the owner of any animal to: 

A. Permit any domesticated animal to become at large whether licensed or not, in any 

park or on any public beach, pond, fountain, or stream therein, or upon any public 

playground or school ground; provided, however, that this section shall not prohibit a 

person from walking or exercising a licensed animal in a public park or on any public 

beach, where permitted, when such animal is on a leash, tether or chain not to exceed 

eight feet in length. This section shall not apply to designated off-leash areas or a service 

animal if a leash would interfere with the service animal’s work or the nature of the 

owner’s or keeper’s disability prevents use of a leash; 

B. Permit any animal to be a nuisance; 

21



C. Fail to keep any female dog or cat in heat confined in a building or secure enclosure in 

such a manner that such female dog or cat cannot come into contact with another animal 

except for planned breeding; 

D. Fail to provide an animal with humane care and treatment and with sufficient and 

proper nutritional food for its species, sufficient water, proper shelter and protection from 

the weather, and veterinary care when needed to prevent suffering; and not amounting to 

animal cruelty under BLMC 6.04.140 or as defined in Chapter 16.52 RCW; 

E. Leave an animal unattended for more than 24 consecutive hours without adequate 

care; 

F. Abandon an animal; 

G. Use any trap for the purpose of seizing domestic animals, except that humane traps 

may be used as approved by the discretion of the animal control officer for the purpose of 

capturing abandoned, at large and sick animals. 

Section 2. Section 6.04.230 of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code is hereby amended to 

read as follows. 

6.04.230 Violations – Penalties. 

A. Unless otherwise specifically set forth herein, any person violating the provisions of 

this chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, except those persons who permit animals to 

become at large (BLMC 6.04.190(A)), permit animals to be a nuisance (BLMC 

6.04.010(P) and 6.04.190(B)), fail to keep animal in heat confined (BLMC 6.04.190(D)), 

22



fail to provide animal with humane care as defined in BLMC 6.04.190, or fail to have and 

provide rabies vaccination as defined in BLMC 6.04.250 have committed a Class 1 civil 

infraction pursuant to RCW 7.80.120. 

Persons charged with infractions shall be processed by the municipal court in the same 

manner as persons charged with traffic infractions. Persons failing to appear for hearings 

for violations of this chapter shall be subject to the penalties set forth in BLMC 1.16.030. 

(Ord. 1642 § 1, 2020; Ord. 1352 § 1, 2010). 

B. The Prosecutor is encouraged to lower the fine amount for Class 1 civil infractions 

under this Chapter as permitted under Washington State law when one or more of the 

following circumstances exists: 

1. There is no history of a similar incident for the animal, animal owner, or person in 

control of the animal;  

2. The person owning or in control of the animal takes corrective measures to prevent the 

animal to become at large in the future; 

3. The person owning or in control of the animal provides an affidavit or sworn testimony 

to the court regarding a hardship or inability to pay the fine amount; or, 

4. Other circumstances determined to be in the interest of justice. 

Section 3. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty (30) days from and after 

its passage, approval and publication, as required by law. 

 

23



 

 

 

 

 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL this 12th day of December 2023. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Michael McCullough, Mayor 

AUTHENTICATED: 
 
_________________________________ 
Sadie A. Schaneman, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 

 
AB____ 
Passed: 
Valid: 
Published: 
Effective Date: 
This Ordinance totals _____ page(s) 

24


	PUBLIC SAFETY
	COMMITTEE
	AGENDA
	/
	Council Committees are primarily concerned with legislative/policy matters. They formulate and convey recommendations to the full council for action (BLMC 2.04.090).


	A. CALL TO ORDER – Councilmember Justin Evans, Chair
	C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: November 14, 2023
	D. DEPARTMENT REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS:
	E.  DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS:
	F.  OPEN COMMITTEE DISCUSSION:
	G.  PUBLIC COMMENTS:
	H. ADJOURNMENT
	20231114 Public_Safety_Committee_DRAFT Minutes.pdf
	DRAFT MINUTES
	/

	F. OPEN COMMITTEE DISCUSSION:

	11 - November - 2023 - Public Safety Report.pdf
	10 - October NIBRS and Stats.pdf
	2023


	Ordinance D 23 152 animal at large.pdf
	Section 1. Section 6.04.190 of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:
	6.04.190 General Violations.
	Section 3. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty (30) days from and after its passage, approval and publication, as required by law.




